1993

Larsen v. Larsen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL AUTHORITY

Jurisdiction is vested with the Court of Appeals pursuant to Utah Code Annotated § 78-2a-3(2)(i) (1992).

ISSUES AND STANDARDS OF REVIEW

The issues presented for review are as follows:

1. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it failed to award Plaintiff an adequate amount of alimony. The applicable standard of appellate review for resolution of this issue is the "clear abuse of discretion" standard as cited in *Kerr v. Kerr*, 610 P.2d 1380, 1382 (Utah 1980).

2. Did the Trial Court abuse its discretion when it denied Plaintiff's request that Defendant pay attorney's fees? The applicable standard of appellate review for resolution of this issue is the "clear abuse of discretion" standard as cited in *Kerr v. Kerr*, 610 P.2d 1380, 1382 (Utah 1980).

**CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES,
RULES, AND REGULATIONS**

None.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Court heard this trial on January 7th, 1993, and took the matter under advisement at that time. The parties appeared again before the Court on January 12th, 1993, and argued the matter. On January 12th, 1993, counsel for Plaintiff and Defendant met with the Court in chambers at which time Plaintiff brought to the Court's attention and submitted documents establishing that the Defendant had sold a family horse on January 4th, 1993, three days before trial. Defendant testified at trial that he had not sold the family horse on the date of trial.

At the trial, the parties stipulated to the value of the family home and the value of an equity lien in favor of Defendant, subject to adjustments or offsets as determined by the Court. The parties further stipulated that the Defendant's retirement account be divided under the guidelines established in *Woodward v. Woodard*, 656 P.2d 431 (Utah 1982), and that a Qualified Domestic Relations Order should be entered. The parties further stipulated to the value of a piece of real property known as the "corrals". The parties did not stipulate to the reasonable value of the personal property and proof was received on that issue. However, the Court refused to adjust the disparate division of personal property in favor of Defendant.

The Court denied Plaintiff's request of alimony in the sum of \$700.00 per month, awarding instead, alimony of \$285.00 per month, even though Plaintiff's gross income is \$15,683.00 per year and the Defendant's income is in excess of \$40,000.00 per year.

The Court also denied Plaintiff's request for attorney fees, and failed to make any finding with regard to the reasonableness of the fees. Testimony concerning attorney fees was admitted by way of both affidavit and testimony, and was unrebutted.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. The Trial Court correctly determined that Plaintiff was entitled to permanent alimony. However, it clearly abused its discretion when it awarded Plaintiff only \$285.00 per month, and provided no additional cash flow to Plaintiff, but rather, opted to reduce the amount of Defendant's equity lien against the family home at the rate of \$285.00 per month until June of 1994, at which time cash payments begin. By the Court's own finding, this leaves Plaintiff with net cash short fall of \$437.00 per month to support herself and three minor children, which shortfall is actually greater, to-wit \$923.00 per month, because the Court arbitrarily reduced Plaintiff's monthly expenses to arrive at that figure (\$437.00 per month.

2. At trial, Plaintiff's counsel submitted an affidavit regarding attorney fees (P.20) and testified as well. That testimony was unrebutted. Despite the fact that Defendant was awarded an equity lien against the family home of \$25,217.00, and earns over \$40,000.00 per year compared to Plaintiff's \$15,000.00

per year, the Court failed to award Plaintiff attorney fees. Of significance, is the fact that the Trial Court failed to make any finding with regard to the reasonableness of the attorney fees testified to at trial. The Trial Court should have awarded attorney fees by either (1) requiring Defendant to pay Plaintiff monthly payments, (2) requiring him to sell the lot and shed awarded him having equity in excess of \$7,000.00, or (3) ordered the equity lien against the family home in favor of the Defendant reduced by attorney fees incurred by Plaintiff.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

At the time of trial, Plaintiff and Defendant had been married for slightly less than 20 years. They had three children, Chad, age 16; Tim, age 14, and Melissa, age 13. Plaintiff was 41 years of age and Defendant was 45. When the parties were married, they both worked for U S West and were living in Provo. When Defendant was transferred to Cedar City, Plaintiff had to quit her job because there were no positions available in the U S West system in Cedar City. (Tr.2.) Plaintiff worked part time thereafter, but stayed out of the job market on a full-time basis to raise the children. (Tr.42.)

Plaintiff is currently employed full-time as a secretary with the State of Utah Division of Water Rights and earns \$1,306.00 per month gross, with take home pay of \$956.00 (Tr.23; Ex.1). Any pay increase is limited to what the legislature allows and which most recently, was 2% in July of 1992. (Tr.24.) Plaintiff wanted to finish college, but was discouraged from doing so by Defendant who

told Plaintiff they didn't have the money for it and she would be neglecting her children and the housework won't get done. (Tr.27.) Plaintiff wanted to become a teacher, but Defendant repeatedly made statements to Plaintiff that "people who can't do anything in the real world teach". (Tr.27.) Plaintiff would still like to go back to school but is prohibited from doing so financially. (Tr.27.)

At trial, Plaintiff submitted a Full Financial Declaration (Ex. 1) and testified that her total monthly expenses were \$2,742.00. (Tr.45.)

During the entire marriage, Defendant has been employed by Mountain Bell, now U S West with a current gross monthly income of \$3,357.51. From that amount is deducted \$771.58 for federal and state income tax, with one exemption taken, \$192.16 social security and medical insurance of \$44.94, leaving disposable income of \$2,349.00, or \$1,393.00 more per month than the net income of Plaintiff.

In addition to base pay, Defendant also received a bonus from his employer in 1991 of \$4,176.00 and in 1992 of \$3,689.00. Therefore, for 1992, Defendant had total income from U S West of \$43,922.00.

The disparity of the incomes between the parties is evident. With the bonus for 1992, Defendant earned \$28,279.00 more than Plaintiff. Without the bonus, the disparity is \$24,590.00, or over \$2,000.00 per month, based on gross income. By himself, Defendant claimed total monthly expenses of \$2,584.00. (Addendum A-2, Ex. D-16). Comparing that to Plaintiff's total claimed monthly expenses,

we find that Plaintiff's total monthly expenses for herself and three children were only \$158.00 more per month than Defendant's to support only himself.

At trial, the parties stipulated to child support of \$718.00 per month, or \$239.00 per child. The Court awarded child support only until the children reach age 18, so Plaintiff's income will reduce by \$239.00 per month while the oldest child, Chad, is still in high school. He will turn 18 on May 8th, 1994. She will likewise have her income reduced by \$239.00 per month when Tim turns 18 on March 25th, 1996, with a final reduction of \$239.00 on October 25th, 1997 when Melissa turns 18.

At trial, the parties stipulated that the family home be awarded to the Plaintiff, with her to pay the first mortgage and Defendant to pay the second mortgage, which will be paid in January of 1994. Defendant was awarded a lot with a shed on it having an equity value of \$7,063.06. Plaintiff's retirement and 401K was equally divided resulting in a sub-value of lien in favor of Defendant against the family home of \$25,817.00. That amount was further reduced by \$600.00, being one-half of an amount received by Defendant for the sale of a horse, resulting in a net lien in favor of Defendant against the family home of \$25,217.00 (FF.11).

A word needs to be said about the sale of the family horse because it weighs heavily on the credibility and truthfulness of the Defendant. At the time of trial, Defendant failed to list the two family horses as marital assets and that was raised as an issue. (Tr.163.) Defendant was then asked whether or not he had

just sold a horse, and responded that he had not, and did so on January 7th, 1993, while under oath. Because Plaintiff was suspicious Defendant had not testified truthfully regarding the sale of the horse, and after the matter was taken under advisement by the Court, Plaintiff obtained documents from the U.S. Forest Service which indicate that Defendant sold one of the horses to the Forest Service on January 4th, 1993 (3 days before trial) for \$1,200.00 and received cash for the same, therefore lying while under oath at the time of trial. (See Addendum A-3, copy of Forest Service documents). When the parties came back to argue this matter, Defendant was confronted with this evidence and voluntarily agreed to have the equity lien in his favor reduced by \$600.00. The Trial Court, without imposing any sanctions on Defendant, simply accepted that reduction, with the net result being that Defendant took the entire \$1,200.00 in cash and never has to pay it back in the form of cash, but rather one-half of that amount was simply deducted from his equity lien.

The parties further stipulated to a division of Defendant's retirement with U S West under the formula set forth in *Woodward v. Woodward*, 656 P.2d 431 (Utah 1982).

At trial, the parties also stipulated to the division of personal property, but not the value of the property retained by each party. Testimony was taken with regard to that issue and instead of making a specific finding with regard to respective values, the Trial Court found that neither party had produced sufficient evidence to convince the Court that the stipulated

property division was inequitable. (FF.19). This finding was made in spite of the fact that Defendant may have had the use of as much as \$9,000.00 in a separate account known as the R & B Account wherein only he wrote checks, even though Plaintiff was on the account. (Tr.204.)

At trial, Plaintiff requested attorney fees, and testified that she was without funds with which to pay an attorney fee. (Tr.70.) Plaintiff's counsel submitted an affidavit in support of attorney fees (Ex.P-20) and testified that through trial, Plaintiff incurred attorney fees of \$3,597.00, that said sum was fair and reasonable and necessary on behalf of Plaintiff, and the amount charged by Plaintiff's counsel was similar to rates charged by other attorneys practicing law in the State of Utah. (Tr.218-220.) The only payment made on Plaintiff's behalf for attorney fees was the sum of \$1,000.00 which was paid by Plaintiff's father and mother. Defendant, on the other hand, had paid his attorney \$781.00 at time of trial and still owed \$1,500.00, not including trial preparation or for time spent in trial. (Tr.206.)

The Court disregarded the attorney fees affidavit and the testimony and found that both parties had incurred legal fees relative to this action, that neither party at the present time had funds to pay attorney fees, that Defendant did not have the ability to pay Plaintiff's attorney fees, and ordered each party to pay their own costs and attorney fees, payment of which was to be negotiated between client and attorney (FF.20, Addendum A-8). The Court failed to make any finding with regard to the reasonableness

of the fee, a finding which is fatal as set forth in *Muir v. Muir*, 200 Adv. Rep. 41, Pg.41 (filed November 12th, 1992). See discussion *infra*.

The Court granted permanent alimony to Plaintiff of \$285.00 per month, but did not require cash to be paid to Plaintiff until June of 1994, rather, opting to have the Defendant's share of the equity lien against the home reduced at the rate of \$285.00 per month for approximately one and one-half years. Plaintiff's income therefore remains unchanged during the pendency of this matter, to-wit, \$1,674.00 (\$956.00 take home plus \$718.00 child support). She and the children therefore live at an established poverty level. (Tr.229.)

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT AWARDED PLAINTIFF AN INEQUITABLE AND INSUFFICIENT AMOUNT OF ALIMONY.

While the Trial Court properly determined that Plaintiff was entitled to permanent alimony, it clearly abused its discretion when it awarded Plaintiff only \$285.00 per month. Taking into account Plaintiff's substantial financial needs which she cannot independently satisfy and considering that Defendant has adequate resources to provide additional support for Plaintiff, the Trial Court's minimal alimony award is both insufficient and inequitable.

As articulated by the Utah Supreme Court, "[t]he most important function of alimony is to provide support for the wife as nearly as possible at the standard of living she enjoyed during the marriage, and to prevent the wife from becoming a public charge."

English v. English, 565 P.2d 409, 411 (Utah 1977). Defendant's expert witness, a CPA, testified Plaintiff will be living at "poverty level" based on IRS standards. (Tr.229.) An alimony award should, to the extent possible, equalize the parties' respective post-divorce living standards. *Gardner v. Gardner*, 748 P.2d 1076, 1081 (Utah 1988); *Jones v. Jones*, 700 P.2d 1072, 1075 (Utah 1985); *Rasband v. Rasband*, 752 P.2d 1331, 1333 (Utah Ct. App. 1988). The Utah Supreme Court has articulated three factors (hereinafter referred to as the "**Jones test**" or "**Jones factors**") that must be considered by the Trial Court in determining a reasonable alimony award:

1. The financial conditions and needs of the requesting spouse;
2. The ability of the requesting spouse to produce a sufficient income for himself or herself; and
3. The ability of the other spouse to provide support.

Gardner, 748 P.2d at 1081; *Jones*, 700 P.2d at 1075; *Rasband*, 752 P.2d at 1333.

The Trial Court's decision regarding alimony will not be overturned "absent an abuse of discretion or manifest injustice." *Watson v. Watson*, 837 P.2d 1, 3 (Utah Ct. App. 1992). A Trial Court's failure to consider the *Jones* factors constitutes an abuse of a Trial Court's discretion. *Paffel v. Paffel*, 732 P.2d 96, 101 (Utah 1986). If the *Jones* factors have been considered, an appeals court will not disturb the trial court's award "unless serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion." *English*, 565 P.2d at 411.

Further, the Trial Court is required to make sufficiently detailed findings on all material issues to show the steps it took to reach its conclusion on all of the factual issue presented. *Sampinos v. Sampinos*, 750 P.2d 615, 617 (Utah Ct. App. 1988). A failure to make such findings constitutes reversible error unless facts in the record are "'clear, uncontroverted, and capable of supporting only a finding in favor of the judgment.'" *Id.* (quoting *Lee v. Lee*, 744 P.2d 1378, 1380 (Utah Ct. App. 1987)).

Based on the foregoing standards, the Trial Court's decision in the present action should be reversed and alimony set at \$700.00 per month. The Court in its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law ("FF") purported to make findings on each of the three required elements; but, as the evidence discussed below suggests, the Court's review was sometimes often erroneous and merely perfunctory. The Court failed to adequately and accurately substantiate many of its findings on material issues and failed to equitably account for Plaintiff's actual needs, Plaintiff's ability to care for herself and the parties' three children, and Defendant's ability to provide spousal support. The Trial Court's inequitable and unfounded decision should be reversed to prevent injustice. At trial Plaintiff submitted in the form of written argument four schedules that clearly outline a fair and just method whereby alimony could have been set at \$700.00. See Addendum A-4, 5, 6, and 7 for that discussion.

The Utah Court of Appeals in *Bell v. Bell* reversed and remanded the Trial Court's alimony award after concluding the award

was not supported by adequate findings. 810 P.2d 489, 493 (Utah Ct. App. 1991). The parties in *Bell* had been married approximately 12 years and had one child at the time of the divorce. Id. at 491. The husband was ordered to pay \$450.00 per month in child support and \$250.00 in alimony for two years. The husband was also ordered to pay a portion of the wife's attorney fees. Id.

In *Bell* at the time of the trial, the wife was pursuing a masters degree in education and was making \$863.00 per month. Id. Prior to that time she had a different job where she made \$1,500.00 per month or approximately \$18,000.00 per year. The husband was a major in the Air Force and at the time of the divorce was making \$3,660.00 per month or approximately \$40,000.00 per year. Id. The wife claimed monthly expenses of \$2,493.00, while the husband claimed \$5,090.74.00. Id. at 493.

The wife appealed the court's decision and asserted, among other things, that the award for alimony was insufficient. In reversing the trial court's alimony award, the Court of Appeals determined that the award was not supported by adequate findings. Id. at 493. The trial court had essentially ignored the three-pronged *Jones* test by making inadequate findings regarding the needs of the husband and wife and the wife's ability to support herself. Id. In addition, the court made no findings regarding the reasonableness of claimed expenses by the husband and wife and only found that each party had roughly equivalent debts in their names. Id. Such is the case here. (See FF.15 to 18, Addendum 8). Specifically, the Court failed to find that Defendant's

monthly expenses were reasonable, a finding mandated by Utah law. Rather, the Court arbitrarily reduced Plaintiff's monthly expenses by \$486.00 (FF.15), but reduced Defendant's by only \$181.00, a finding which is simply not supported by the evidence. The net result is that the Trial Court recognized monthly expenses for the Defendant on behalf of one person of \$2,693.00, and expenses for Plaintiff and three minor children \$2,256.00, or a difference in Defendant's favor of \$437.00. In other words, Defendant can have \$2,693.00 per month to live on with Plaintiff and the minor children each allotted \$564.00 per month. This disparity is further made evident by the fact that in January of 1994, Defendant will have the second mortgage paid off on the home, decreasing his monthly expenses by \$280.00, and in March of 1994, Defendant will have an additional \$100.00 because the obligation owed to the State Tax Commission of \$100.00 per month will be paid in full or a swing in Defendant's favor of \$380.00 per month. On the other hand, Plaintiff's expenses remain constant and will not decrease until the family home is paid for, unless, of course, she is required to sell it to pay Defendant's equity lien upon terms set by the Trial Court, to-wit, (1) sale of the home, (2) remarriage or cohabitation of the Plaintiff or (3) the youngest child moves out of the home for a period in excess of three months or reaches the age of 22 years, whichever event occurs first.

In *Bell* the Court of Appeals emphasized that "[w]ithout a finding on reasonable expenses, we are unable to determine the true needs of wife, or to determine husband's actual ability to pay and,

therefore, to balance wife's needs against husband's ability to pay as required in *Jones*." Id. at 493. The Court also stated: "The mere conclusory statement of the trial court that husband can 'afford nothing' when he is making \$40,000.00 per year is simply not supported by the record, absent some findings as to the reasonableness of his claimed expenses." Id.

Similarly, the Utah Supreme Court in *Gardner v. Gardner* held that the trial court's alimony award was insufficient and inequitable. 748 P.2d 1076, 1081 (Utah 1988). The parties were married well over thirty years and had two adopted children, both of whom were adults at the time of the trial. Id. at 1077. The wife had not worked in thirty years; the husband was a surgeon earning \$6,000 a month. Id. The trial court awarded the wife a portion of the couples substantial assets and granted her \$1,200.00 per month alimony, to be reduced to \$600.00 after her husband's retirement. Id. at 1078.

In reversing the alimony award, the Court of Appeals noted that the court provided no explanation of the basis for the preretirement award. Id. at 1081. Considering, in light of her monthly needs, that she was unemployed and had little future earning potential, the Court of Appeals concluded that "it is clear that the award is insufficient to equalize the parties standard of living." Id. The court held that explicit findings based on the *Jones* factors were needed. Id. at 1082.

Finally, in *Howell v. Howell*, the Court of Appeals found that the trial court erroneously relied on the parties' standards of

living at the time of separation for determining the amount of alimony rather than their standard of living at the time of the trial. (806 P.2d 1209, 1212 (Utah Ct. App. 1991). As a consequence, the alimony payments were inadequate to equalize the parties' standard of living at the time of the divorce. Id.

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