1993

Larsen v. Larsen : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT I: The Plaintiff failed to marshal the evidence in favor of the Court's findings and demonstrate why, when the evidence is viewed in a light most favorable to the Court's findings, the evidence is insufficient to support the decision. Based on the case law in the State of Utah, if the appellant does not marshal the evidence the reviewing court will not disturb the Trial Court's findings.

POINT II: The Plaintiff is challenging the trial courts Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. The Appellant has used and cited to matters outside of the record which was inappropriate, irrelevant, and should not be considered on appeal. The Plaintiff is attempting to mislead the Court by inserting addenda and arguments in her brief that were clearly not before the trial court. Therefore, such material should not be considered on appeal.

POINT III: The trial court correctly awarded Plaintiff permanent alimony in the amount of \$285.00 per month. The trial court properly followed the criteria set forth in Jones v. Jones, 700 P.2d 1072 (Utah 1975), and its progeny. The trial court acted within its discretion and made extensive findings as it relates to the issue of alimony. The trial court properly considered and made findings regarding the need of the receiving spouse, her ability to provide for herself, and the ability of the responding spouse to provide support.

POINT IV: The trial court acted properly when it denied Plaintiff an award of attorneys fees. The factors to be determined in awarding attorneys fees are set forth in Muir v. Muir, 200 Adv. Rep., 41 (Utah App. Ct. 1992). The trial court had sufficient evidence to determine that the Defendant did not have the ability to pay Plaintiff's attorneys fees. Because the trial court concluded that the Defendant did not have the ability to pay Plaintiff's attorneys fees, it was unnecessary for the trial court to make findings as to whether the fees claimed by the Plaintiff were reasonable.

POINT V: Defendant is entitled to attorneys fees for the reason that Plaintiff's appeal is frivolous and without merit. First, the Plaintiff has failed to marshal the evidence, in direct violation of the policies and procedures established by the appellate courts. Second, the Plaintiff has attached several addenda and set forth arguments her brief which are clearly not a part of the trial court's record. Because the Plaintiff has

attempted to mislead the Court, it has become necessary for this Defendant to set forth additional arguments and to expend additional time, resources, and effort to defend himself against accusations made by the Plaintiff against the Defendant which are not a part of the record.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

PLAINTIFF HAS FAILED TO MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE
IN FAVOR OF THE COURT'S DECISION AND DEMONSTRATE
WHY, IN THE LIGHT MOST FAVORABLE TO THE COURT'S
DECISION, THE EVIDENCE IS INSUFFICIENT TO
SUPPORT THE DECISION

Plaintiff has failed to marshal the evidence in favor of the Court's findings and demonstrate why, in the light most favorable to the Court's findings, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings. The Plaintiff asserts that the trial court abused its discretion when it awarded Plaintiff an inequitable and insufficient amount of alimony. Plaintiff argues that the permanent alimony awarded, \$285.00 per month, is clearly erroneous and therefore the trial court abused its discretion in awarding said amount.

The Plaintiff relies upon Jones v. Jones, 700 P.2d 1072, 1075 (Utah 1985) which correctly sets forth the three criteria a trial court must use in determining a reasonable alimony award. Plaintiff concedes that the Jones factors were considered and therefore, an appellate court should not disturb the trial court's award (unless serious inequity has resulted to manifest a clear abuse of discretion). English v. English, 565 P.2d 409 at 411,

(Utah 1977). The Plaintiff argues the same evidence that was elicited during trial and does not demonstrate that the evidence was insufficient to support the findings. This court has ruled, in the case of Schindler v. Schindler, 766 P.2d 84, 88 (Utah Ct. App. 1989) that:

to mount a successful attack on the trial court's factual findings, an appellant must marshal all of the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and then demonstrate that, even viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to the findings, the evidence is insufficient to support the findings, or that its findings are otherwise clearly erroneous. (citing Scharf v. BMG Corp., 700 P.2d 1068, 1070 (Utah 1985)).

Plaintiff asks this Court to arbitrarily set alimony in the amount of \$700.00 per month. Appellant has not demonstrated, in any way, shape or form, that the evidence in this case was insufficient to support the Court's findings, thus their claim for any increase in the alimony award should not be considered.

Another case directly on point is Online Corp., v. Granite Mill, 208 Utah Adv. Rep. 79 (Utah Ct. App. 1993). In that case this court stated:

"An appellant must marshal the evidence in support of the findings and then demonstrate that despite this evidence, 'the trial court's findings are so lacking in support as to be 'against the clear weight of the evidence,' thus making them clearly erroneous.'"..."If the appellant fails to marshal the evidence, the appellate court assumes that the record supports the findings of the trial court and proceeds to a review of the accuracy of the lower courts conclusions of law and the application of that law in the case".

Id. at 79-80 (quoting In re Estate of Bartell, 776 P.2d 885,886

(Utah 1989); Saunders v. Sharp, 806 P.2d 198, 199 (Utah 1991)).

Moreover, in Ohline this Court held that Ohline had failed to marshal the evidence. Instead, Ohline had merely selected facts from trial that are most favorable to its position and then reargued those facts to this court on appeal. Ohline, 208 U.A.R. at 80.

In the case at bar, the Plaintiff has merely selected those facts which are most favorable to her position, which have already been argued in the Fifth Judicial District Court, and is now rearguing those facts on appeal. The Plaintiff has neither marshalled the evidence in favor of the Courts findings nor demonstrated its insufficiency in the light most favorable to those findings. Therefore, Plaintiff's claims should be rejected.

POINT II

IN CHALLENGING THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS OF
FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, PLAINTIFF HAS USED
AND CITED TO MATTERS OUTSIDE OF THE RECORD WHICH
IS INAPPROPRIATE, IRRELEVANT, AND SHOULD NOT BE
CONSIDERED ON APPEAL

Plaintiff has attached addenda and have set forth certain arguments in her brief which are not a part of the record and should not be considered by this court. Those addenda and/or arguments include the following:

(a) Page 6 and 7 of Plaintiff's brief which relates to the sale of a family horse and how that should attack the credibility and truthfulness of the Defendant. There is nothing in the record that states that this horse was ever sold by the Defendant. Therefore, any reference to the sale

of the family horse should not be considered by this Court;

(b) Addendum A-3 of Plaintiff's brief, which is a copy of Forest Service Documents, once again indicates that there was a sale of the horse. This is not a part of the record nor does this Court know whether that horse was purchased on consignment or whether that horse was returned to Defendant;

(c) Addendum A-4 of Appellant's brief. This was a document used by Plaintiff in closing arguments, it was never marked as an exhibit nor was it admitted into evidence and therefore this Court should not consider Addendum A-4 of Appellant's brief;

(d) Addendum A-5. Once again, this was used for illustrative purposes in closing argument and was never marked as an exhibit nor was it introduced into evidence;

(e) Addendum A-6. This was used for illustrative purposes in closing argument and was never marked as an exhibit nor was it introduced into evidence;

(f) Addendum A-7. This was used for illustrative purposes in closing argument and was never marked as an exhibit nor was it introduced into evidence.

Case law in the State of Utah is very clear as to what constitutes the record on appeal. In Ebbert v. Ebbert, 744 P.2d 1019 (Utah Ct. App. 1987), this Court held that "Matters not admitted into evidence before the trier of fact will not be considered on appeal to this Court." Id. at 1023 (emphasis added) The Utah Supreme Court has also made the identical finding in the

case of Pilcher v. State of Utah, Department of Social Services, 663 P.2d 450 (Utah 1983). The Court held that "reliance on documents not found in the record is improper. Matters not admitted in evidence before the trier of fact will not be considered here." Id. at 43 (citing In re Estate of Cluff, Utah 587 P.2d 128 (Utah 1978)).

The Plaintiff has attempted to mislead this Court by trying to attack the Defendant's veracity with evidence that is not in the record specifically regarding the sale of the family horse. Such evidence was not marked as an Exhibit nor was it otherwise introduced into evidence. Further, the Plaintiff is attempting to mislead this Court by introducing evidence that was submitted at the time of closing argument which is clearly not a part of the record. Based on the case law in this State, this Court should not consider and/or take into account the documentation which is listed above and which is contained in Appellant's brief.

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY AWARDED PLAINTIFF
PERMANENT ALIMONY IN THE AMOUNT OF \$285.00
PER MONTH

Plaintiff has correctly set forth the criteria to be considered by the trial court in determining a fair and equitable alimony award. Those factors are as follows:

1. The financial conditions and needs of the receiving spouse.
2. The ability of the receiving spouse to produce a sufficient income for herself.

3. The ability of the responding spouse to provide support Jones v. Jones, 700 P.2d 1072, (Utah 1985) (citing English v. English, 565 P.2d 409, 411-12 (Utah 1977)).

Plaintiff is also correct that if a trial court does not consider and make specific findings as to any of the above three factors, then its award of alimony is an abuse of discretion. On the other hand, if the three factors have been considered, this Court should not disturb the alimony award "unless such a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion." Schindler v. Schindler, 776 P.2d 84, 90 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).

In the instant case, the trial court did make specific findings as to all three factors. As to the financial condition and needs of the requested spouse, the Court found, based upon competent evidence, that Plaintiff had certain expenses that exceeded her income and that she had reasonable monthly expenses of \$2,256.00 per month. (FF. 15). Plaintiff contends that the trial court did not make a finding that the expenses of Plaintiff were "reasonable". However, the trial court specifically stated that "with the deductions and with what the Court feels is reasonable [Plaintiff's] total monthly expenses would be \$2,256.00 per month". Id. Indeed, in making a reduction in expenses, the trial court is impliedly making a decision regarding the reasonableness of Plaintiff's expenses.

The trial court also made a specific finding regarding the ability of Plaintiff to produce a sufficient income for herself. It was uncontroverted that Plaintiff had a net income of \$956.00

per month from her employment. The Court so found. (FF. 16). It was also uncontroverted that Plaintiff would receive an additional \$718.00 per month as income from Defendant as and for child support. Finally, based upon testimony from Mr. Claude Slack, C.P.A., the trial court found that, by the judicious exercise of her exemptions, Plaintiff would have an additional tax savings of some \$145.00 per month. This latter evidence was essentially un rebutted by Plaintiff. Plaintiff did not call any expert or other witness to contradict the opinion of Mr. Slack. However, even if Plaintiff had presented evidence to rebut Mr. Slack, the trial court was perfectly within its discretion to totally ignore any contradictory evidence to Mr. Slack and adopt his opinion as its own. As discussed in Point I, above, Plaintiff has failed to marshal the evidence in support of the Court's findings and then show that they are clearly erroneous. The testimony of Mr. Slack amply supports the trial court's finding regarding Plaintiff's additional income from tax withholding savings.

Based upon the above factors, the trial court had adequate basis to find that Plaintiff had a total income, including child support, of \$1,819.00 per month. (without child support, Plaintiff's income, presumably for her own use, would be \$1,101.00). Thus, based upon the Court's findings regarding Plaintiff's expenses, Plaintiff would have a net monthly shortfall of \$437.00.

Finally, the trial court considered and made specific findings regarding the ability of Defendant to pay alimony. As with

Plaintiff's income, it was undisputed that Defendant's monthly net income after taxes was \$2,348.00. The trial court so found. (FF. 17). Again, based upon competent evidence presented to the Court, the Court found that Defendant's monthly expenses were \$2,693.00, including his child support obligation. As with Plaintiff, the Court adjusted Defendant's expenses as set forth in his Full Disclosure Financial Declaration. Again, there was competent evidence to support this determination and Plaintiff has failed to meet her obligation to marshal such supporting evidence.

Based upon the income and expenses of Defendant, the trial court determined that he had a shortfall of some \$345.00 per month which was less than Plaintiff's shortfall. The Court also determined that Defendant's shortfall would be reduced sometime in the future and that his child support obligation would be reduced. (FF. 18). Accordingly, based upon all of these factors, along with the long term of the marriage, the fact that the parties had always struggled financially and the fact that Plaintiff was discouraged from pursuing additional education, the Court awarded \$285.00 in alimony. The trial court clearly considered all of the factors under Jones and made detailed findings with regard to those factors. Accordingly, this Court should not disturb the trial court's award of alimony. Indeed, the trial court has met the ultimate test for the reasonableness of the alimony award; that is, "whether the party receiving alimony will be able to support him or herself 'as nearly as possible at the standard of living... enjoyed during the marriage.'" Schlinder v. Schlinder, 776 P.2d

84, 90 (Utah Ct. App. 1989)(quoting English v. English, 565 P.2d 409, 411 (Utah 1977)).

Plaintiff apparently contends that the alimony award has failed to meet the "ultimate test" of reasonableness. Plaintiff has gone to great lengths to juggle numbers and has even submitted matters that are not part of the record to support her contention. Without conceding the admissability of such evidence (see Point II above), Defendant submits that Plaintiff's contention is unfounded. Plaintiff seems to argue that, because Plaintiff is required to support herself and her three (3) children on her income, (including child support plus alimony) and Defendant must only support himself on his income, there is a gross inequity. She further contends that her income is going to be continually reduced because Defendant's obligation for child support is going to be reduced as each child reaches the age of 18. Plaintiff's contention is flawed for at least two reasons.

First, Plaintiff ignores the fact that the child support payment of Defendant is intended to cover the lion share of the children's expenses. Without regard to the parties expenses whatsoever, Plaintiff's income without child support, but including alimony would be \$1,386.00 per month. On the other hand, Defendant's disposable income after deducting child support and alimony would be \$1,345.00 per month. In other words, Plaintiff conceivably has some \$41.00 more income than Defendant to cover her personal expenses. Defendant recognizes that Plaintiff is probably going to have to use some of her own income to support the

children; however, there are also economies of scale that offset that obligation. For example, Plaintiff's mortgage payment for the home of herself and all three children is only \$340.00; whereas Defendant's rent for just himself is \$390.00. (See Full Disclosure Financial Declarations).

A second flaw in Plaintiff's argument is that although her income is reduced by some \$239.00 per month as each child reaches majority, Plaintiff's expenses should be reduced by a like amount or more. In other words, Plaintiff's obligation to support a child after it reaches 18 is eliminated at the same time as Defendant's obligation is eliminated. The law presumes that when a person reaches age 18 he or she must earn his own "keep".

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